
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 10, 2023 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, November 15, 2023, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 15, 2023, at 5:45 pm in the board 
room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have questions 
about any items listed below, please call me at 323.6519 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look forward to seeing 
you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

7. Resolution 11-23-02 – Approval to Hire HDR to Design and Prepare Specifications for Metro
Park East Landfill Phase II Capping and Compost Expansion – Action for Approval
The FY23/24 Budget includes capital funds for many improvements at Metro Park East Landfill
(MPE). To begin these improvements, project scope, and bid specifications related to composite
cap and compost pad expansion must be prepared. Staff recommends approval.

8. Resolution 11-23-03 – Approval of P-67 Metro Park West Phase II Design and Permitting –
Action for Approval
The FY23/24 Budget includes capital funds for implementation of Phase II expansion and
permitting, in addition to planning and design for future landfill cells at Metro Park West Landfill
in Perry. Staff recommends approval.

9. Resolution 11-23-04 – Approval of Chevy 6500 Service Truck Purchase for Metro Park East
Landfill – Action for Approval
A landfill service truck is used to make repairs, transport equipment, and bring tools to work on
equipment within the facility. The FY23/24 budget includes $250,000 for the purchase of two
new service trucks. Staff recommends approval.

Page 1 of 78



10. Resolution 11-23-05 – Approval of Ford F250 Road Service Truck Purchase for Metro Park East
Landfill – Action for Approval
A service truck is used to make repairs, transport equipment, and bring tools to work on
equipment outside of the facility on public roads. The FY23/24 budget includes $250,000 for the
purchase of two new service trucks. Staff recommends approval.

11. Resolution 11-23-06 – Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement Payment to Polk
County – Action for Approval
This payment to Polk County for bond proceeds related to the Material Recovery Facility and
refinance of Metro Northwest Transfer Station occurs semi-annually. Staff recommends
approval.

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

12. Resolution 11-23-07 – Approval to Add Virtual Attendance Policy to Board Policy Manual –
Action Item
Metro Waste Authority Board of Directors proposes adding a policy regarding virtual attendance
to the Board Policy Manual. Staff recommends approval.

Page 2 of 78



Board of Directors 
2023 Calendar Year 

Dean O’Connor 
Chair 

Rob Sarchet 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Bob Peffer 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Brian Baker 
Norwalk 

Mark Konrad 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Matt Blake 
Urbandale 

Doug Loots 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 11

5. Consideration of Minutes October 18, 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 11-23-01 – Consideration of October 2023, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

7. Resolution 11-23-02 – Approval to Hire HDR to Design and Prepare
Specifications for Metro Park East Landfill Phase II Capping and Compost
Expansion – Action for Approval

8. Resolution 11-23-03 – Approval of P-67 Metro Park West Phase II Design and
Permitting – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 11-23-04 – Approval of Chevy 6500 Service Truck Purchase for
Metro Park East Landfill – Action for Approval

10. Resolution 11-23-05 – Approval of Ford F250 Road Service Truck Purchase for
Metro Park East Landfill – Action for Approval

11. Resolution 11-23-06 – Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement
Payment to Polk County – Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

12. Resolution 11-23-07 – Approval to Add Virtual Attendance Policy to Board
Policy Manual – Action Item

13. Discussion: Cardboard & Glass Community Drop-Off Update

14. Director’s Report

15. Chair’s Report

16. General Board Discussion and Other Business

Page 3 of 78



Page 2 of 2 

MWA Board Meeting 
November 15, 2023 

17. Correspondence

18. Adjournment

December Executive/Finance Meeting: December 6, 2023, MWA Central Office, 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 

December Board Meeting: December 13, 2023, MWA Central Office, 300 E. 
Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 

Page 4 of 78



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

October 18, 2023, Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Dean O’Connor, chair,
called the October 18, 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45 pm.
A quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona – In Person
Mark Holm, Ankeny – Virtual
John Edwards, Clive – In Person
Joe Gatto, Des Moines – In Person
David Gisch, Grimes – Virtual
Tom Cope, Johnston – In Person
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville – In Person
Brian Baker, Norwalk – Virtual
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County – Virtual
Ron Pogge, Urbandale – In Person
Gary Ranker, West Des Moines – In Person
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights – In Person

2. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve the October 18, 2023, board
meeting agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

3. Public Forum
There were no requests to address the Board.
_____________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9
Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 4
through 9.

5. Consideration of Minutes of September 20, 2023, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 10-23-01 – Consideration of September 2023, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

7. Resolution 10-23-02 – Approval of Purchase of Semi Tractor for Metro Recycling
Facility – Action for Approval

Page 5 of 78



8. Resolution 10.23.03 – Approval of Purchase of Case 580 Quad Track for Metro Park
East Landfill – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 10-23-04 – Approval of P-64 Metro Park West Cell D Liner and Greene
County Landfill Improvement Project Completion and Final Payment - Action for
Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval - Items 10 and 13 

10. Resolution 10-23-05 - Approval of Sorting Robots Lease for Metro Recycling Facility -
Action Item
Dan Haag, recycling administrator, reported Metro Waste Authority (MWA) is
recommending the lease of three robots with AI technology for Metro Recycling
Facility’s (MRF) to collect high value commodities. The 5-year lease option for the
robots is $60,000/year/robot with and 1-time installation cost of $6,500/robot. The
robots would not replace staff.

Moved by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 10-23-05. Motion
carried unanimously by voice vote.

11. Discussion: Fire Rover for Metro Recycling Facility
Haag reported MWA staff are evaluating fire protection systems for the MRF, including
a fire rover detection and suppression system. Staff reported a fire rover would not have
prevented the September fire at the MRF.

12. Closed Session
Moved by Johnston, seconded by Windsor Heights, to enter closed session at 5:58 pm
as provided in Iowa Code Chapter 20.17(3) for a negotiation strategy session. No action
was taken during the closed session.

A motion was made by Clive, seconded by Des Moines, to adjourn closed session at
6:22 pm. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. The public meeting reconvened at
6:24 pm.

13. Approval of Three (3) Year Union Contract with Terms Retroactive to July 1, 2023 –
Action Item
Moved by Des Moines seconded by Clive, to approve Resolution 10-23-06. Motion
carried unanimously by voice vote.

14. Director’s Report
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, introduced Kirk Irwin as MWA’s new CFO.

Haag provided an update on the fire at the MRF. Five weeks since the fire, equipment
has been evaluated and staff anticipates being fully operational by Thanksgiving.

Irlbeck reported MWA hosted an employee service awards event at the Environmental
Learning Center on October 14, 2023. Many employees were able to attend and
celebrate service anniversaries.

Page 6 of 78



Irlbeck reported, due to anticipated staff retirements, many key positions will be open in 
the coming months. Staff anticipate recommendations to over hire key positions to allow 
for cross-training ahead of retirements.  

The November executive finance meeting will be held on November 1, 2023, at 
Central Office (300 E. Locust St. Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) at 12:00 pm. 

The November board meeting will be held on November 15, 2023, at Central Office 
(300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) at 5:45 pm. 

15. Chair’s Report
Dean O’Connor, chair, reported the December board meeting may be moved from
December 20 to December 13 due to the holidays.

16. General Board Discussion and Other Business
John Edwards, Clive board member, inquired about recycling drop-off usage.

17. Adjournment
Moved by Clive, seconded by Johnston, to adjourn the October 18, 2023, board
meeting. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:33 pm.

____________________________     _____________________________
Michael McCoy, Executive Director                       Dean O’Connor, Chair

Page 7 of 78



Page 8 of 78



Page 9 of 78



Page 10 of 78



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 7 

ITEM:  
Approval to Hire HDR to Design and Prepare Specifications for Metro Park East Landfill 
Phase II Capping and Compost Expansion. 

SUMMARY:  
Many improvements are planned for Metro Park East Landfill (MPE) this fiscal year. To begin 
these improvements, project scope, and bid specifications related to composite cap and compost 
pad expansion must be prepared.   

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The capping of approximately 9.2 acres of the northern slope of Phase II will improve leachate and 
odor control, methane gas recovery, and overall aesthetics of the site.  

Improvements to the compost facility will provide a larger area to handle and process materials 
more efficiently. The compost pad improvements will be completed in accordance with the master 
plan design. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommend approval of a contract with HDR to prepare bid specifications for Phase II 
Capping and Compost Expansion. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The quoted cost of $332,453, to design and prepare specifications, will be split between 
closure/post closure funds and capital funds. In FY23/24 capital expenditures, $4.6 million is 
budgeted for site improvements at MPE.  

CONTACT: 
Andrew Phillips, environmental operations manager, 515.250.5411 

Page 11 of 78



EXHIBIT A 
TASK ORDER 

This Task Order represents an Agreement by and between the Metro Waste Authority (MWA), (“OWNER”), and HDR 
Engineering, Inc. (HDR), (“ENGINEER”) in accordance with the Terms and Conditions for Professional Services, dated 
February 28, 2018. Engineer shall perform services on the project described below as provided herein. This Task 
Order shall not be binding until it has been properly signed by both parties. 

HDR appreciates the opportunity to provide this proposal to MWA for professional engineering and oversight services 
in support of updates to the final closure system at the MWA Metro Park East (MPE) Landfill. 

PROJECT NAME: MWA MPE Phase II Stage 2 Capping Engineering Services – GL Code: 30-5410-000 

Upon execution of this agreement, the above listed project name will be included on all subsequent invoices. By 
signature of this task order, MWA and HDR agree to the acceptability of this arrangement. 

Project Scope of Services 
Metro Waste Authority | HDR Engineering, Inc. 
MPE PHASE II STAGE 2 CAPPING ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Project Statement and Objective 
It is our understanding MWA desires to hire an experienced engineering firm to provide comprehensive engineering 
services related to design, permitting, bidding, and construction support for final cover construction at the Metro Park 
East Landfill (MPE) facility. 

Scope of Services 
 Task Series 100 – Stage 2 Capping Design Services 

101 – Pre-Design Survey 

102 – Stage 2 Capping Design 

103 – Alternative Final Cover System Permitting 

104 – Permit Amendments 

105 – Compost Pad Design as Bid Alternate 

106 – Contract Document Development 

 Task Series 200 – Bidding Assistance 

201 – Bid Document Production & Notice to Bidders 

202 – Pre-Bid Meeting 

203 – Bid Tabulation & Review 

204 – Contract Initiation Documents 

Page 12 of 78



 Task Series 300 – Construction Engineering Services 

301 – Construction Administration 

302 – Resident Construction Observation 

303 – CQA Report & Regulatory Correspondence 

The following pages outline specific aspects of each task included in this project. 

Task 100 Stage 2 Capping Design Services 
Task 101: Pre-Design Survey 

HDR Activities: HDR will perform a topographic survey by a registered land surveyor in the State of Iowa to 
encompass the entire extent of the anticipated construction area. The area to be surveyed 
includes approximately 9.2 acres comprising the Stage 2 capping area and soil borrow and 
stockpile areas. 

Results of the pre-design survey will be relied on as the basis for all design elements, 
volumetrics, and bid quantity determinations. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. 

Deliverables: An electronic copy of the updated topographic survey will be provided to MWA for 
incorporation into the MPE site utility map. 

Key Understandings: Surveying will be completed by a subcontractor to HDR via aerial drone survey. MWA 
personnel will be responsible for ground control target placement and surveying prior to 
aerial surveying occurs. 

Task 102: Stage 2 Capping Design 

HDR Activities: HDR will develop design and construction documents (plans and specifications) for 
construction of the second stage of capping at MPE. The Stage 2 Capping area will 
comprise an approximate 9.5-acre composite final cover system along the north sideslope of 
the Phase II landfill, with the final extents determined by MWA fill progression between now 
and the time of construction in Spring 2024. Overall design components will include: 

• Structural storm water controls of capping system, including terraces, channels,
letdown structures, culverts, erosion protection and hydraulic energy
dissipation;

• Review of existing storm water controls for adequate sizing to handle
anticipated storm water flows from cap (especially at the northwest corner of
Phase II);

Page 13 of 78



• Permanent terminations at perimeter edge of liner and temporary liner
terminations at interior limits of cap; and

• Customer and facility access roads and modifications to existing scraper haul
roads, including rerouting and filling the current primary customer access road
to the landfill.

Work will begin with review and compilation of existing permit, survey, and record documents 
and past design documentation to use as talking points for the design basis development 
meeting to be held at MPE. The design basis development meeting will include a site visit, 
overall evaluation of MWA’s desired outcomes, and discussion surrounding final decisions 
necessary to initiate design activities. HDR will prepare a written design basis memorandum 
summarizing meeting outcomes and key design requirements, constraints, and changes. 

Following the design basis development meeting, HDR will begin production work on Stage 
2 Capping design plans and specifications. Design review meetings will be held with MWA at 
60% and 90% complete milestones. If a pre-design meeting is requested by IDNR, the 60% 
complete design review meeting will be replaced with the IDNR pre-design meeting. 

HDR will prepare a preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost to be 
discussed at the design basis development meeting, and will develop an updated Engineer’s 
Opinion of Probable Cost in association with the 90% complete design review meeting. 

Planned Meetings: A total of four (4) meetings are anticipated in association with this task, including: 

• Design basis development meeting and site visit (in-person)
• 60% design review / IDNR pre-design meeting (virtual)
• 90% design review meeting (in-person)
• Final draft Issued For Bids Project Manual review meeting (virtual)

Deliverables: Deliverables will be provided to MWA electronically prior to each design review meeting and 
hard copy deliverables will be provided for discussion at the time of each design review 
meeting. Deliverables associated with this task will include: 

• Design basis memorandum
• 60% complete design plan set
• 90% complete design plan and specification set
• Engineer’s Opinion of Capital Cost (concurrent with the design basis memorandum

and 90% complete design) and schedule of anticipated capital outlays.

Key Understandings: The project, including all design and construction components identified in Task Series 100, 
200, and 300, will be let in one single bid package. 

No electrical design is anticipated or planned in this scope of work. The final cover will facilitate boots 
for gas and other structures as needed. If additional gas design (new/re-drilled features, new lines) is 
needed, it will be completed as an additional scope item. 

Final extent of the capping project will be primarily determined by progression of fill placement 
activities completed by MWA prior to initiation of design activities, and prior to start of 
construction. Through discussions with MWA it is currently understood that the area at 
permitted grade ready for capping is approximately 9.5 contiguous acres. There is a portion of 

Page 14 of 78



the northern slope that may require relocation of wastes placed above final grade that will be 
considered within the design and permitting efforts. If either of these key understandings are 
incorrect, additional services may be required. 

As-recorded drawings for Cell A, Cell B, Cell C North and South, Cell D North and South, and 
related interconnecting portions of historic landfill cells can be relied upon for the tie in of the 
cap system. 

Unless specifically identified herein, design excludes major drainage structures (i.e. new 
sedimentation or detention basins and structures outside the Phase II limits not specifically 
identified) and structures outside the landfill area except for the perimeter channel. 

No geotechnical analysis of the closure area or borrow area are anticipated and therefore are 
not included in this scope of work. 

Stage 2 Capping design will utilize the same general design basis and construction details as 
in the approved permit for the final cover system, drainage details, and specifications. 

An erosion control permit exists and requires no modification for the construction of the cell 
expansion. Work does not include an update to the storm water pollution prevention plan or 
preparation of a site plan or grading permit application to Polk County. 

For any coordination with Waste Management (WMI) related to landfill gas system piping or 
wellhead connection details, MWA will serve as the primary point of contact and will instruct 
HDR as to the specific construction details required by WMI. 

Task 103: Alternative Cap Design 

HDR Activities: HDR will undertake an evaluation regarding permitting and installation of an alternative 
starburst pattern capping concept. HDR will identify potential alternative options for et cover 
and drainage patterns for the cap from the Master Plan, develop benefits and impacts, and 
determine preliminary construction and maintenance costs. This evaluation will include a 
review of concept, including an operational (i.e. maintenance and ongoing operating 
requirements) and economic analysis, and conceptual design for use in obtaining IDNR 
regulatory approval. 

Following completion of the alternative cap evaluation and review and approval by MWA, 
HDR will submit the evaluation to IDNR. 

With IDNR’s approval of the proposed design, HDR will prepare detailed designs of the 
selected alternative options for the capping area, and incorporate the design into the 
combined bid package with other project elements described in Tasks 100, 200, and 300. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. Task elements will be discussed in 
conjunction with project review meetings outlined under Task 102. 

Deliverables: Alternative cap feasibility evaluation and IDNR regulatory submittal. 

Deliverables associated with detailed design of the alternative cap will be provided in the 
combined design review sets detailed for Stage 2 capping. 

Page 15 of 78



Key Understandings: IDNR may have comments or questions on the proposed changes. HDR has built up to 10- 
hrs of time addressing IDNR questions in this scope. If extensive questions, 
communications, or revisions are needed based on IDNR comments, additional scope may 
be needed. While the proposed capping revisions are not unusual or un-permittable from a 
design perspective in the industry, they are fairly unique in the state of Iowa. Because there 
is limited precedence in the state for the proposed design changes, these proposed changes 
cannot be relied upon for design until formal approval is received from the state. 

Design submittal may include stormwater calculations, water balance, and vegetation details. Stability, 
HELP, and other design calculations associated with the permit are not anticipated to require updates 
with the proposed alternatives. 

Task 104: Permit Amendments 

HDR Activities: In consultation with MWA and IDNR, HDR will identify required updates to existing permit 
documents for inclusion in a permit amendment to allow for construction of the Stage 2 
Capping, and incorporation of capping alternates, if approved. 

Based on our understanding of IDNR permitting requirements, we anticipate needing to 
modify the following permit documents: 

• 2B - Permit Drawings (and Specifications)

• 9 – Closure and Post-Closure Plan

• 10A – Closure Cost Estimate

• 10C – Financial Assurance Mechanism

Following submission of revised permit documents to IDNR, HDR will respond to IDNR 
questions or comments. Up to four (4) hours of professional time for response to IDNR 
comments have been included in the proposed budget for this task. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. Task elements will be discussed in 
conjunction with project review meetings outlined under Task 102. 

Deliverables: HDR will submit revised permit documents as a single IDNR Solid Waste Operating Permit 
Amendment application package to allow for construction of the Stage 2 Capping. Draft 
permit amendment application documents will be provided to MWA for review as part of the 
90% design review meeting. Interim permit documents regarding the temporary cover may 
be provided. 

Key Understandings: No additional designs, calculations, or significant drawing modifications other than those 
outlined in the ‘HDR Activities’ section for this task will be required to prepare the permit 
amendment submittal. 

Task 105: Compost Pad Design as Bid Alternate 

HDR Activities: HDR will prepare design level drawings and details for the compost area “option A” from the 
master plan. The area will include the initial proposed construction of about 20-acres, 

Page 16 of 78



including roadway access and compost runoff pond and connection to the existing leachate 
pond. 

Included in this item will be submittal of a permit application package utilizing form 50A 
pursuant to IAC 567 – 105.8 to IDNR prior to construction. This will include: 

• Documentation that the area meets setback requirements pursuant to IAC 567 -
105.3(1)

• A compost operations plan specific to state requirements in IAC 567 – 105.3 (2-10).
This scope of work does not include registering with the department of agriculture
under Iowa Code chapter 200 (required if selling compost from the facility). The
operations plan will discuss record keeping requirements detailed in IAC 567 –
105.11 and IAC 567 – 105.4 (6) along with the state form and instructions for
completion of annual reporting. This plan will further include:

o Equipment to be used.

o Operational flow chart for composting steps.

o Descriptions of operating procedures as detailed in IAC 567 – 105.8(3)

o Approach for meeting specific operation requirements detailed in IAC 567 –
105.9

• Notification to the IDNR with information required in IAC 567 - 105.4 (1) – reference
form 50A.

• Drawings of the proposed composting facility.

• A closure plan meeting the requirements of IAC 567 – 105.13

• Financial assurance supporting documentation pursuant to IAC 567 – 105.14. MWA
to provide documentation of the financial assurance instrument prior to submittal of
the permit application.

• Calculations supporting the sizing of the facility for composting and drainage
infrastructure.

Updating the Landuse Site Plan (appendix 2C of the site permit) is included in this scope of 
work. 

404 Permitting is included in this scope of work. A wetland delineation is being completed 
under a separate scope, which will determine the extent of the wetland area. At this time for 
this scope, it is assumed the project will require an individual permit application, will not 
require floodplain or sovereign lands permitting, and no mitigation plan will be required. In 
effect, once the area is determined, the application will propose purchase from a wetland 
bank. 

Submittal of a Polk County Grading Permit application is included in this scope of work. 

Page 17 of 78



Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. Task elements will be discussed in 
conjunction with project review meetings outlined under Task 102. 

Deliverables: Compost pad construction plan and detail drawings, specifications, and inclusion in the bid 
package with associated structural fill, roadway, and leachate conveyance quantities. 

Key Understandings: HDR will proceed with Option A – the preliminary layout included in the Master Plan. While 
pond grading/location and minor details are anticipated to be refined with this scope, multiple 
design iterations (and additional design locations) are not included in this item. 

Permit application fees, or any permitting efforts not specifically described above, are excluded from 
this scope of work. 

Addition to the site SWP3 is not included in this scope of work and will be completed under separate 
scope once the facility is designed, permitted, and selected for construction. 

MWA will select and send a minimum of 2-site personnel to perform the IDNR approved compost 
certification program upon approval of the permit application by the department. 

The IDNR requires a composting permit be issued prior to construction of a composting facility, and 
requires the facility to be inspected 30-days prior to construction completion (prior to accepting 
materials). The scope and schedule of this project assumes timely reviews from IDNR with minimal 
comments. 

Task 106: Contract Document Development 

HDR Activities: HDR will prepare final Contract Documents for design elements identified by MWA and 
included in the Task Series 100 Scope of Services. 

Final Contract Documents will include: 

• Notice to Bidders
• Advertisement for Bids
• Instructions to Bidders
• Form of Proposal
• Bid, Performance, and Payment Bond Forms
• Notice of Award
• General Conditions
• Supplemental Site Specific General Conditions
• Construction Drawings and Specifications

Also during this task, HDR will create a survey control table with staking coordinates and 
pre-determined point naming/numbering conventions for use by surveyor, contractor, and 
CQA consultant during cell construction. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. Task elements will be discussed in 
conjunction with project review meetings outlined under Task 102. 

Deliverables: Draft and final bid package including contract documents, drawings, and specifications. 

Page 18 of 78



Key Understandings:  No additional designs, calculations, or significant drawing modifications other than those 
outlined in the ‘HDR Activities’ section for this task will be required to prepare the permit 
amendment submittal. 

Task 200 Bidding Assistance 
Task 201 Bid Document Production & Notice of Hearing and Letting 

HDR Activities: HDR will assist MWA in the solicitation and evaluation of one single bid package for the 
construction of Stage 2 Capping. For the single package, HDR will use a lump sum and 
select unit costs in bidding the project (similar to prior MWA projects) to minimize risk to all 
parties and encourage competitive bidding. 

HDR bidding assistance will include: 

• Prepare official Notice to Bidders.
• Aid MWA in development of prospective bidder’s list.
• Reproduce and distribute bidding drawings and Contract Documents to prospective

bidders.
• Respond to bidders’ and suppliers’ questions and issue addenda as appropriate.

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. 

Deliverables: Electronic copies of final construction plans in Adobe PDF format and specifications in 
Microsoft Word format. 

Key Understandings: Project will be let in one bid package as described in the HDR Activities section. 

Bidders will provide electronic media release agreements for any documents furnished 
electronically. 

Task 202 Pre-Bid Meeting 

HDR Activities: HDR will arrange for and facilitate the pre-bid meeting. Meeting agenda, meeting information 
packets, and meeting notes will be created and distributed to meeting attendees. Pre-bid 
meeting minutes and attendee list will be issued as an addendum to the Contract 
Documents. 

Planned Meetings: The pre-bid meeting will consist of a single meeting. A minimum of two (2) HDR employees 
will be in attendance at the pre-bid meeting. 

Deliverables: Pre-bid meeting agenda and meeting materials packet will be prepared and made available 
electronically and in hard copy for meeting attendees. 

Meeting notes will be prepared and made available electronically to meeting attendees and 
as an addendum to Contract Documents. 

Page 19 of 78



Key Understandings: The pre-bid meeting will be held at Metro Park East administrative offices within the 
scalehouse. 

Task 203 Bid Tabulation & Review 

HDR Activities: HDR will review submitted contractor bids for technical completeness and accuracy and 
tabulate bids for presentation to MWA along with an official recommendation of award. 

As determined necessary at the direction of MWA, HDR will further evaluate selected bids by 
interviewing references, suppliers, or key project individuals. For budgetary purposes, eight 
(8) professional hours for supplemental bid evaluation have been included in the fee for this
task.

Planned Meetings: HDR will attend and facilitate the bid opening at the time identified and specified in the 
Contract Document Specifications. The bid opening is anticipated to occur at the MPE 
scalehouse and be offered virtually as well as in person. MWA will collect all received bids. 
HDR will open each bid, read aloud the bid amounts and any alternates included in the bid, 
addenda acknowledgements, and record the bid amounts on a whiteboard within the 
conference room where the meeting is held. MWA will scan all bid documents and provide all 
received bid documents to HDR virtually for tabulation and review. 

Deliverables: Completed bid tabulation spreadsheet and recommendation of award letter. 

A supplementary memorandum outlining review process and outcomes may be produced at 
MWA’s request. 

Task 204 Contract Initiation Documents 

HDR Activities: HDR will liaise directly between MWA and the selected contractor to complete and execute 
the requisite paperwork to initiate the construction contract. This will include correspondence 
with the selected contractor and MWA project managers and completion of the following 
initiation documents: 

• Issuance of Notice of Award following approval of contractor by MWA board.

• Review of contractor’s certificate of insurance, performance bond, and payment
bond for compliance with general conditions of the contract.

• Completion of the Agreement Stipulated Price (contract mechanism) and execution
of the agreement by MWA and contractor.

• Issuance of Notice to Proceed following satisfactory completion of the preceding
contract initiation documents.

• Completion of state sales tax waiver forms from MWA to contractor.

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned for this task. 

Deliverables: Final hard copies of each of the contract initiation documents described in the ‘HDR 
Activities’ section for MWA and contractor internal records, and electronic copies in the 
project record database, to be established by MWA or the selected CQA consultant. 

Page 20 of 78



Task 300 Construction Engineering Services 
Task 301 Construction Administration 

HDR Activities: Review Shop Drawings and Miscellaneous Submittals required by the Construction 
Documents Project Manual. These include, but are not limited to, Shop Drawings and 
Miscellaneous Submittals required by the following Specification Sections, as well as other 
specification sections as needed: 

• 01 11 20 Job Conditions

• 01 29 01 Payment Procedures

• 01 31 19 Project Meetings

• 01 33 00 Submittals

• 01 50 00 Temporary Facilities and Controls

• 01 65 50 Materials and Equipment

• 01 71 23 Field Engineering

• 01 77 01 Closeout Procedures

• 01 73 29 Demolition, Abandonment, Removal, and Salvage

• 31 10 00 Site Clearing and Preparation

• 31 23 00 Earthwork

• 31 25 00 Soil Erosion and Sediment Control

• 32 91 13 Topsoiling and Finished Grading

Page 21 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

• 32 92 00 Seeding

• 33 44 00 Storm Drainage System

Prepare and issue information and/or interpretations to clarify Contractors’ questions 
regarding the Contract Documents. 

Responding to CQA consultant’s requests for reviews or consultation on substitutions and 
changes including evaluation of HDR designs. 

Prepare design clarifications to the Contract Documents, if requested and necessary. If field 
conditions dictate the need for additional design by HDR, this would be considered an 
additional service. 

Prepare field orders, work change directives, change proposal requests, and change 
orders. 

Attend pre-construction conference. Attend progress meetings. 

Prepare as-built record documentation in hard copy and electronic (PDF and AutoCAD) 
versions for MWA records. 

Planned Meetings: As outlined in the activities above, HDR will attend the pre-construction meeting, monthly 
progress meetings, and pre-installation meetings. Each meeting will be held in Des Moines, 
Iowa and will be attended by one (1) HDR project team member. The meetings will be 
facilitated by the CQA representative, and the CQA representative will be responsible for 
completing meeting agenda, notes, and follow-up item tracking. 

Deliverables: Copies of shop drawings and submittals with appropriate review action uploaded to cloud- 
based (i.e. SharePoint) project records folder. 

Key Understandings: HDR’s role providing construction services under this scope of services is limited to 
construction engineering support, design clarifications, and reviews of product submittals 
related to specific design elements. We understand MWA intends to separately contract the 
field observation, testing, documentation, and coordination required for Construction Quality 
Assurance (CQA), either with HDR or an alternate third-party. MWA or MWA’s selected 
CQA Consultant shall be responsible for: 

• Monitor, document and report on Contractors’ performance.

• Review the Contractor’s construction schedule and monitor, document and report
on Contractor’s progress.

• Conduct project meetings, including publishing of agenda and meeting notes.

• Process Contractor payment applications.

Page 22 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

• Administer final walkthrough and project closeout.

• Field Quality Assurance and Construction Observation.

• Testing and Analytical Services.

• Final engineering certification report (construction quality assurance report) of
completed work for submittal to IDNR.

Task 302 Resident Construction Observation 

HDR Activities: Field observation, documentation, and coordination required for Construction Quality 
Assurance (CQA). 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned for this task. Progress meetings are defined in the 
previous Task 301. 

Deliverables: Final hard copies of each of the contract initiation documents described in the ‘HDR 
Activities’ section for MWA and contractor internal records, and electronic copies in the 
project record database, to be established by MWA or the selected CQA consultant. 

Key Understandings: HDR CQA responsibilities are as follows: 

• Monitor, document and report on Contractors’ performance.

• Review the Contractor’s construction schedule and monitor, document and report on
Contractor’s progress.

• Conduct project meetings, including publishing of agenda and meeting notes.

• Process Contractor payment applications.

• Administer final walkthrough and project closeout.

• Field Quality Assurance and Construction Observation.

This task is built based on an estimated schedule. For a 9.2-acre cap, HDR estimates 16- 
weeks of full time CQA (4-months), at 60-hours per week (960-hrs). If the schedule 
exceeds this timeframe, additional cost will be incurred. 

Construction will begin in March 2024 and end in August 2024 (24 weeks). Anticipated 
duration of on-site RPR activities is 16 weeks with an average of 60 hours per week, 
equating to 960 hours for the RPR commencing with start of contractor’s construction 
activities. This estimate of effort assumes RPR will be on-site during the period when the 
contractor is performing work, requiring RPR observation. Reasonable variations in 
workdays and schedules are anticipated, but no overtime, work stoppages or extended 
work schedules are anticipated. If additional construction observation is required, it can be 
provided as an additional service. 

Page 23 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

In accordance with standard MWA construction contract protocol, all hours worked over 60 
hours per week or associated with remedy of non-compliant work or failed tests will be 
separately tracked for MWA’s use in recouping these costs from the contractor. 

Quality assurance surveying, testing and documentation preparation will be completed in 
accordance with the approved Construction Quality Assurance Plan (CQAP) included in 
MWA’s solid waste disposal permit. Quality assurance soil testing and surveying is the 
responsibility of the Contractor but will be coordinated through on-site RPR. 

Quality control/quality assurance surveying will be completed by a licensed surveyor under 
the construction contractor and reviewed by HDR for compliance with the CQAP and the 
contract documents. 

HDR has assumed a single construction contractor and all of the capping construction work 
will occur in 2024. 

Field oversight will be performed according to the IDNR approved CQAP. 

RPR will not authorize any deviation from the contract documents. 

The RPR will be responsible for photo documentation of both construction and deficiencies. 
This duty will include photographs to document construction of each construction item; and 
panoramic views which will be covered as a result of construction shall be photographed 
while exposed. Photos shall be uploaded daily to the MWA SharePoint site. 

Additional observations and measurements specified in the CQAP, other than those 
specifically described herein, will be collected, recorded, and documented as required. 

As construction progresses, the testing methods and frequency may be adjusted to account 
for the materials encountered or utilized to conform with MWA’s permit and CQAP. 

Third-party surveyor, to be employed by the Contractor(s), will verify construction is 
completed to the required elevations. 

Task 303 CQA Report and Regulatory Compliance 

HDR Activities: Prepare and submit to MWA record documentation, including but not limited to weekly 
progress summaries, detailed daily field reports, test data summaries, and record drawings. 

Review final survey and as-recorded drawings provided by Contractor. 

Prepare a CQA certification report for submittal to the IDNR for the final cover. The final 
certification report will include observations, test results, sampling locations, corrective 
measures performed (if applicable), relevant records of written correspondence, and other 
information required to certify the project was constructed in general accordance with the 
CQAP and that construction meets or exceeds the design criteria and specifications in 
MWA’s current disposal permit and subsequent permit amendments. Furthermore, the CQA 

Page 24 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

certification report will contain a detailed photo log, and record drawings showing necessary 
details to reflect as built construction conditions. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned for this task. 

Deliverables: One (1) final engineering certification report for submittal to IDNR in electronic format. 

One (1) final Record Drawing set compiled by HDR from Contractor’s certification and 
record surveying to be incorporated in the CQA report. 

One (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic copy of the final certification report submitted to 
MWA. 

One (1) draft copy will be submitted to MWA for review within fourteen (14) days of project 
completion and at least seven (7) days prior to the desired regulatory submittal date. 

One (1) photograph log of construction activity including: 

• Photographs shall be obtained to document construction of each construction item

Key Understandings: Project surveying will be completed by a third-party surveyor to be selected and retained by 
the Contractor. Project surveyor will provide, at regular intervals in accordance with the 
project Contract Documents, as-built record drawings of layer thickness, boundaries, and 
other newly constructed features. 

Page 25 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Project Schedule 
HDR is prepared to begin work on this project immediately and will coordinate availability of project 
team personnel and resources as necessary to meet MWA’s desired timeline for construction bid 
letting and bid award. The table below identifies key milestones in the proposed Scope of Services 
to accommodate MWA’s desired timeline. It is anticipated that design services for Task 100 project 
elements will be completed concurrently and included in the design review meetings. 

Description 
Projected 

Completion Date 

Notice of Award October 18, 2023 

Design Basis Development Meeting October 25, 2023 

60% Design Review Meeting November 21, 2022 

90% Design Review Meeting December 13, 2023 

IDNR Notification to Construct December 18, 2023 

Bid Letting January 01, 2024 

Pre-Bid Meeting January 24, 2024 

Deadline for Bid Receipt February 07, 2024 

Notice of Construction Contract Award February 21, 2024 

Start of Construction March 18, 2024 

Construction Substantial Completion July 31, 2024 

Submittal of CQA Report to IDNR August 16, 2024 

Construction Final Completion August 31, 2024 

Page 26 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Compensation and Fee Schedule 
HDR will perform the Scope of Services detailed herein on a lump sum basis for all tasks with the 
exception of Task 301, 302, and 303. The level of effort and associated fees for these tasks are 
highly variable based on the quality of selected contractor, rate of construction work progress, and 
numerous other unforeseeable circumstances. As such, these tasks (301, 302, and 303) will be 
invoiced on a time and materials basis to protect both MWA and HDR. A detailed breakdown of our 
fee by task series is provided as follows: 

Task Series Description Budget 

100 – Stage 2 Capping Design Services $140,782 

101 – Pre-Design Survey $5,644 

102 – Stage 2 Capping Design $44,165 

103 – Alternative Final Cover System Permitting $9,264 

104 – Permit Amendments $3,735 

105 – Compost Pad Design for Bid Alternate $73,169 

106 – Contract Document Development $4,805 

200 – Bidding Assistance $13,199 

201 – Bid Document Production & Notice to Bidders $5,656 

202 – Pre-Bid Meeting $3,489 

203 – Bid Tabulation & Review $2,195 

204 – Contract Initiation Documents $1,858 

300 – Construction Engineering Services $178,472 

301 – Construction Administration $23,748 

302 – Resident Construction Administration $147,716 

303 – CQA Report & Regulatory Correspondence $7,008 

Total $332,453 

Page 27 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPE Ph II, Stage 2 Capping 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

This Task Order is executed this 26th day of October, 2023. 

Metro Waste Authority HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

“OWNER” “ENGINEER”  

BY: BY: 

NAME: NAME: Matthew B. Tondl 

TITLE: TITLE: Senior Vice President 

ADDRESS: ADDRESS: 1917 S 67th Street 
Omaha, NE 68106 

Page 28 of 78

https://na1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAmwa12e4sDy4Wd1nGoNI5nyl8Kc6U4KQt


1 

Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 8 

ITEM:  
Approval for P-67 Metro Park West Landfill Phase II Design and Permitting. 

SUMMARY:  
The FY23/24 Budget includes capital funds for implementation of Phase II expansion and 
permitting, in addition to planning and design for future landfill cells at Metro Park West Landfill in 
Perry. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The design and permitting of Phase II will prepare permits for approximately 38.5 acres of land, 
currently owned by Metro Waste Authority, to be utilized for waste disposal. In addition, the design 
will include plans for Cell E, the first cell anticipated on the newly permitted land. This area must be 
permitted before another cell can be built. The next cell is projected to be built in spring of 2026. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommend approval for HDR to prepare permits for additional space and design Cell E for 
MPW at a cost of $173,527.  

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The FY23/24 Capital Expenditures budget includes $350,000 for additional permitting and cell 
design.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• HDR Agreement for Permitting and Cell E Design

CONTACT: 
Andrew Phillips, environmental operations manager, 515.250.5411 

Page 29 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

EXHIBIT A 
TASK ORDER 

This Task Order represents an Agreement by and between the Metro Waste Authority (MWA), 
(“OWNER”), and HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR), (“ENGINEER”) in accordance with the Terms and 
Conditions for Professional Services, dated February 28, 2018. Engineer shall perform services on 
the project described below as provided herein. This Task Order shall not be binding until it has been 
properly signed by both parties. 

HDR appreciates the opportunity to provide this proposal to MWA for professional engineering and 
oversight services in support of Phase II Expansion Permitting at the MWA Metro Park West (MPW) 
Landfill. 

PROJECT NAME: P67 - MWA MPW Phase II Expansion Permitting – GL Code: 30-5410-001 

Upon execution of this agreement, the above listed project name will be included on all subsequent 
invoices. By signature of this task order, MWA and HDR agree to the acceptability of this 
arrangement. 

Project Scope of Services 
Metro Waste Authority | HDR Engineering, Inc. 
MPW PHASE II EXPANSION PERMITTING 

Project Statement and Objective 
The MPW landfill generally consists of two areas: Phase I and Phase II. Phase I is the currently 
permitted area and is located on the west of the site. It consists of closed cells to the north and 
active cells (A, B, C, and the recently constructed Cell D). Phase II is on the eastern side of the site 
and consists of future, proposed expansion area intended to increase airspace and extend the life 
of MPW landfill. 

In 2022, HDR completed a Master Plan with facility improvement plans and drawings for MPW 
(submittal dated August 2022). The purpose of this document was to present a forward-looking 
Master Plan for the MPW landfill, laying out a long-term facility growth plan for the development of 
MPW. The Master Plan culminated in an achievable and realistic plan and schedule which details 
the strategic direction of the facility, considering the impacts of daily operations; and forecasts the 
capital and long-term costs for the next thirty years and beyond. The plan provided detailed 
planning level engineering analysis, designs, and an operational site development strategy based 
on existing and anticipated future conditions. Designs pertinent to the next 10-years are presented 
in more detail, as beyond that point potential changes in operations and technologies will likely be 
incorporated. Based on volumetric projections, this short-term ten-year period includes site 
development through construction and filling of Cell D (the limit of the currently permitted area). 

Page 30 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

The long-term plan details are more conceptual due to unforeseen future circumstances, 
nevertheless, for planning purposes, the long-term plan evaluated future liner and final cover 
grades for final landfill development and included development drawings, volumetrics, and high- 
level opinions of capital costs. The long-term plan includes the proposed construction of base 
grades for the remainder of the site life, and the closure and capping of Phase I and Phase II. 

The proposed expansion of the landfill extends east of the original permitted site. As outlined in the 
Master Plan, new leachate and stormwater ponds will be required with this area. Leachate 
generated from Phase I cells will be conveyed to the newly proposed leachate pond, and the 
current pond will be decommissioned once practical to do so. An overliner system will be installed 
over the Pre-Subtitle D area of Phase I, allowing Phase II to piggyback over the older waste. 
Stormwater runoff from the south and west sides of Phase I will continue to be conveyed to the 
existing stormwater pond. Stormwater from the remaining landfill area will eventually flow to the 
proposed, new stormwater pond. 

It is our understanding that MWA wishes to hire an experienced engineering firm to provide 
comprehensive engineering services related to design and permitting for the contemplated new cell 
development and associated site improvements as envisioned in the MWA Master Plan. Based on 
our pre-design scoping discussions and our experience with permitting of similar facilities in Iowa, 
we believe it is in MWA’s best interest to pursue permitting the entire MPW master planned area 
(denoted as future cells E through J in the Master Plan drawings). HDR will perform engineering 
design (permit level) and permitting services for MWA to support the permit application for 
expansion of MPW as contemplated in the Master Plan. 

As noted, the Master Plan effort completed for MPW in 2022 has enabled HDR to compile much of 
the information and analyses required for this permitting effort. Specifically, it is expected that the 
following aspects of the Master Plan can be relied upon, replicated and utilized as is for this effort: 

• Site History and existing conditions narrative

• Hydrogeological investigation and groundwater management (full Hydrogeological Report
dated April 2022, as attached to the Master Plan)

• Base Liner Design and HELP Model Analysis (full HELP Model output as attached to the
Master Plan)

• Leachate Pond Preliminary Sizing and Leachate Transfer System Evaluation

• New Leachate Pond Implementation Details and Schedule

• Final Capping and Stormwater Management plans and details

• Soil Management, Volume and Site Life Analysis

• Drawings and typical details

Page 31 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Finally, during the construction of Cell D in Phase I, MWA’s subcontractor constructed the access 
road and began excavation of the proposed leachate storage pond for the Phase II expansion area. 

HDR will perform engineering design (permit level) and permitting services for MWA to support the 
permit application for expansion of MPW as contemplated in the Master Plan. This is anticipated to 
include the following series of tasks. Note that some aspects of this work have already been 
completed in the creation of the Master Plan, so these efficiencies are noted and incorporated 
below. 

HDR understands that MWA is also requesting preliminary landfill cell design be conducted at the 
same time for Cell E at the MPW landfill and the removal and replacement of MW-21 south of the 
Greene Co. Landfill unit. Task 200 includes services for design and construction document 
development for Cell E, assumed to be constructed in 2025. Task 300 includes the removal, 
replacement, and documentation for the removal of MW-21. 

Scope of Services 
 Task Series 100 – Expansion Permitting 

101 – Permit Drawings Expansion Area 

102 – Calculations and Plan Updates 

103 – IDNR and Boone County Permit Application Narrative and Submittals 

 Task Series 200 – Cell E Preliminary Design 

201 – Cell E Liner and Leachate Collection System Design 

202 – Contract Document Development 

 Task Series 300 – MW-21 Removal and Replacement 

301 – MW-21 Removal and Replacement 

The following pages outline specific aspects of each task included in this project. 

Task 100 MPW Phase II Expansion Permitting 
Task 101: Kickoff Meeting and Permit Drawings Expansion Area 

HDR Activities: HDR will prepare the permit drawings associated with the landfill expansion 
permit submittal as required by IDNR. Drawings will include: 

Page 32 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

• Site Plan
• Proposed Base Grades
• Proposed Groundwater Conveyance
• Proposed Leachate Conveyance
• Proposed Final Cover Grades
• Overall Cross Sections
• Permit Revision Details

Planned Meetings: One (1) in-person Kickoff Meeting to discuss project objectives. One (1) 
virtual review meeting to discuss draft final set of permit expansion 
application drawings. 

Deliverables: The deliverables for this task are a draft final and final set of permit 
expansion application drawings. 

Key Understandings:  Note that some drawings may be updated and/or recreated from the Master 
Plan drawings. Not included in this item, and not required at this time, is 
construction level design. 

Task 102: Calculations, Environmental Assessments, and Plan Updates 

HDR Activities: HDR will update plans and calculations for submittal with the proposed 
expansion. Included in this item are the following calculation updates: 
HELP model, airspace and excavation, stability (global and veneer), and 
stormwater management structures. 

HDR will perform a wetland delineation of the proposed expansion area. 
Determine the type, size, and location of wetlands and waters of the U.S. 
Delineation findings, including the type, size, and location of wetlands of 
the U.S. will be documented and included as part of the permit application 
submittal. 

HDR will perform a reconnaissance level assessment of the proposed 
expansion limits to determine whether habitat exists for listed threatened 
and endangered species. Assessment findings will be documented and 
included as part of the permit application submittal. 

HDR will submit a request to the Iowa Office of State Archaeologist (OSA) 
for all records of known cultural resources and previous resource surveys 
within one (1) mile of the project area. HDR will consult general land office 
(GLO) maps, the online listings of the National Register of Historic Places 
(NRHP), and available historic aerial imagery and topographic maps to 
identify cultural resources in the project area. Archival research will be 
documented and included as part of the permit application submittal. 

Page 33 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

HDR will update the following plans with the proposed permit expansion: 
Closure/Post Closure Care Plan, Development and Operations Plan, 
Hydrogeological Monitoring Systems Plan, and Leachate Management 
Plan. 

Planned Meetings: Review meeting in collaboration with Task 101 review meeting. 

Deliverables: The deliverable for this task includes the environmental assessment 
findings, updated plans and calculations detailed above compiled into the 
proposed permit expansion application (Task 103). 

Key Understandings: Calculations or plans not listed here are not included in this scope, and 
may be completed at additional cost with MWA approval. 

Task 103: IDNR and Boone County Application Narrative, Review Meeting, and 
Submittals 

HDR Activities: HDR will prepare an application submittal to IDNR solid waste section 
summarizing the proposed cells and detailing how permitting requirements 
are met per IAC 567 Chapter 113. The submittal is anticipated to result in 
an expansion of MWA’s solid waste disposal permit. 

HDR will coordinate and prepare the conditional use permit expansion with 
Boone County to encompass the entire planned expansion area, including 
the entrance road and planned scalehouse. This will be an application to 
Boone County that modifies 2008 approved conditional use area. Zoning 
modifications will be coordinated with Boone County as necessary for 
revised use on MWA-owned parcel (Parcel ID: 088228313100005). 

Planned Meetings: One (1) in-person meeting is anticipated in association with this task. The 
meeting will be held at either MPW or MWA’s office and will be attended by 
two (2) members of the HDR team. HDR will prepare an agenda, meeting 
materials packets, and meeting minutes in conjunction with the planned in- 
person meeting. 

One (1) virtual meeting with the state regulator is anticipated in association 
with this task. HDR will prepare an agenda, meeting materials packets, and 
meeting minutes in conjunction with the planned virtual meeting. 

Deliverables: The deliverable for this task will be a complete expansion permit 
application with permit drawings, calculations, and plans from the previous 
tasks as attachments. Included in this task is completion of IDNR Form 50. 

Page 34 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

The deliverable for this task additionally includes an application to Boone 
County for expansion of the conditional use and necessary zoning changes 
at Metro Park West to include the entrance road and scalehouse activites 
on MWA-owned parcel (Parcel ID: 088228313100005). 

Key Understandings:  Not included in this item are extensive revisions based on IDNR and/or 
Boone County comments. HDR has budgeted 10-hrs of professional time to 
address comments from IDNR. Also not included in this item are additional 
investigation efforts, such as: wetlands delineations, or threatened species 
surveys. HDR anticipates using readily available historic reports, databases, 
and site information for permitting. 

Task 200 MPW Cell E Preliminary Design 
Task 201: Kickoff Meeting and Permit Drawings Expansion Area 

HDR Activities: HDR will develop design and construction documents (plans and 
specifications) for construction of Cell E at MPW. Cell E is the next cell and 
first phase of development for the Phase II waste disposal area within the 
Boone County disposal unit and consists of an approximate 9-acre 
composite liner and leachate collection system. Overall design components 
will include: 

• Subgrade and cell perimeter grading and bulk earthwork plan
(including soil stockpiling and terrace construction for stormwater
diversion);

• Clay liner and flexible membrane liner;
• In-cell leachate collection, including drainage layer and cleanouts;
• New leachate loadout, leachate lagoon, and conveyance systems.
• New sedimentation basin.
• Tie-ins to existing liner and leachate system;
• Groundwater control system, as necessary;
• Geosynthetic rain flap and rain cover, post-construction storm water

controls, and storm water run-on diversion and cell dewatering
design and phasing plan during construction;

• Perimeter grading plan to accommodate revised storm water
routing; and

• Customer and facility access roads and modifications to existing
operational soil haul roads.

Work will begin concurrent with permit development and upon receipt of 
survey and record document data as well as past design documentation to 
use as talking points for a design basis development meeting to be held at 
MPW. The design basis development meeting will include a site visit, overall 

Page 35 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

evaluation of MWA’s desired outcomes, and discussion on final decisions 
necessary to initiate design activities. HDR will prepare a written design 
basis memorandum summarizing meeting outcomes and key design 
requirements, constraints, and changes. 

Following the design basis development meeting and concurrent with 
permitting efforts in Task 100, HDR will begin production work on Cell E 
design plans and specifications. Design review meetings will be held with 
MWA at the 60% and 90% complete milestones and for the Final Draft 
Issued for Bid Project Manual. If a pre-design meeting is requested by IDNR, 
the 60% complete design review meeting will be replaced with the IDNR pre- 
design meeting. 

HDR will prepare a preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction 
Cost to be discussed at the design basis development meeting, and will 
develop an updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost in association with 
the 90% complete design review meeting. Furthermore, HDR will provide a 
capital cost outlay schedule to MWA for use in projecting cash flows through 
the life of this project based on recent historic cell construction projects. Prior 
to the start of project work, HDR will develop an overall project schedule for 
activities leading up to the Notice of Contractor Award. The schedule will 
include key project aspects and milestones for design engineering and bid 
assistance services outlined in this Scope of Services. 

Planned Meetings: A total of four (4) meetings are anticipated in association with this task, 
including: 

▪ Design basis development meeting and site visit.
▪ 60% design review / IDNR pre-design meeting (virtual)
▪ 90% design review meeting
▪ Final draft Issued For Bid Project Manual review meeting (virtual)

The Design basis development and 90% review meetings will be held at the 
MPW landfill in Perry, IA and will be attended by two members of the HDR 
project team. The 60% design review and Final draft IFB project manual 
review will be held virtually with attendance by two members of the HDR 
project team. HDR will prepare agendas, meeting materials packets, and 
meeting minutes in conjunction with each of the four planned in-person 
meetings. 

Deliverables: Deliverables will be provided to MWA electronically prior to each design 
review meeting and hard copy deliverables will be provided for discussion at 
the time of each design review meeting. Deliverables associated with this 
task include: 

• Design basis memorandum

Page 36 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

• 60% complete design plan set
• 90% complete design plan and specification set
• Engineer’s Opinion of Capital Cost (concurrent with the design

basis memorandum and 90% complete design) and schedule of
anticipated capital outlays.

Key Understandings: The project, including all design and construction components identified 
herein, will be let in one single bid package. 

HDR is assuming the previously completed airspace analysis survey 
(completed June, 2023) will suffice for the pre-design topographic survey of 
the anticipated construction area. Prior to bid letting and closer to the date 
of construction, accurate survey information will need to be obtained and the 
bid documents updated accordingly. That survey and document update is 
not included in this scope of services and will be conducted under 
construction services or under on-call services as directed by MWA. 

The construction Contractor will be required to perform a preconstruction 
survey upon mobilization for finalization of bulk excavation unit price items. 
The pre-design topographic survey will be relied on as the basis for all Cell 
E design elements, volumetrics, and bid quantity determinations. 
Volumetrics and bid quantity determinations will be updated with the results 
of the preconstruction survey. 

As-recorded drawings for surrounding cells (Cell B, C, and D) will be relied 
upon for the Cell E design. No geotechnical analysis of the cell area or 
borrow area are required beyond geotechnical development previously 
provided in the master planning or within Task 100. Design will be in 
accordance with permit documents and discussions with IDNR. 

Unless specifically identified herein, design excludes major drainage 
structures, structures outside the cell area, and mechanical designs outside 
the cell area. 

It is assumed that Cell E will utilize the same general design basis and 
construction details as in the approved permit for the cell grades, base liner 
system, leachate collection details, drainage details, and specifications. 

It is assumed that an erosion control permit exists and requires no 
modification for the construction of the cell expansion. 

Is it assumed that no modifications to the existing gas collection and 
conveyance system will be needed for the construction of Cell E. 

HDR will distribute status deliverables electronically to MWA prior to the 
design basis kickoff (0% review meeting), 60%, and 90% review meetings. 

Page 37 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

MWA shall provide markup or requested revisions to HDR within seven (7) 
calendar days of the occurrence of the respective meeting. 

Task 202: Contract Document Development 

HDR Activities: HDR will prepare final Contract Documents for design elements identified by 
MWA and included in the Task Series 200 Scope of Services. 

Final Contract Documents will include: 
• Notice to Bidders
• Advertisement for Bids
• Instructions to Bidders
• Form of Proposal (Bid Form)
• Bid, Performance, and Payment Bond Forms
• Notice of Award
• General Conditions
• Supplemental Site Specific General Conditions
• Construction Drawings and Specifications

With this task, HDR will create a survey certification point table with staking 
coordinates and pre-determined point naming/numbering conventions for 
use by surveyor, contractor, and CQA consultant during cell construction. 
The table will provide the minimum certification point grid and will generally 
follow a 100-ft x 100-ft spacing. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. MWA comment and 
input into contract documents will be solicited concurrent with the 90% 
complete design review and final draft issued for bid document review 
meetings. 

Deliverables: Final contract documents will be produced in electronic form for MWA’s 
review. Professional time and expenses for hard copy production and 
dissemination of Contract Documents is included in subsequent tasks. 

MPW Cell E survey control table in Microsoft Excel format. 

Key Understandings: MWA standard front end construction documents will be used as the basis 
for this project’s construction documents. Changes to the MWA standard 
documents will be limited to project-specific construction and work 
sequence elements. 

If any modifications are necessary to the contract documents (i.e. quantities 
within the bid form, dates within the advertisement for bid, etc.) between 
finalizing the Cell E design and the bid letting anticipated in early 2025, 

Page 38 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Those services are not included in this scope of services and HDR will 
perform the additional work under on-call services, or a construction 
services task as requested by MWA. 

Task 300 MW-21 Removal and Replacement 
Task 301: MW-21 Removal and Replacement 

HDR Activities: HDR will subcontract drilling services for the abandonment of MW-21 
currently located south of the Greene Co. landfill unit. Additionally, the 
subcontractor will install a replacement monitoring well, anticipated to be 
labeled “MW-21R” at a location south of the Greene. Co. Landfill boundary 
and north of the current location. Depths to groundwater at MW locations 
will be evaluated based off recent groundwater elevation data collected 
and the total well depth will be updated accordingly prior to installation. 
HDR will submit to the IDNR notifications regarding the abandonment and 
installation, well abandonment/plugging form, and monitoring well 
construction form. The new monitoring wells, MW-21R will be surveyed by 
the subcontractor as part of this task. 

Planned Meetings: No additional meetings are planned specific to this task. 

Deliverables: Monitoring well construction and abandonment/plugging forms submitted by 
HDR to the IDNR. 

Key Understandings: MWA will review the proposed locations and depths of the planned 
monitoring well installation and provide feedback prior to HDR subcontractor 
proceeding with installation. Subcontractor will be responsible for surveying 
installed monitoring wells and bollard installation. 

HDR field staff will meet with the drilling subcontractor in the field while drilling 
activities are occurring to provide general oversight and coordination. 

MWA is responsible for site clearing and grubbing in the locations of the monitoring 
well installations and abandonment. MWA is responsible for identifying buried 
utilities at the anticipated drilling locations. 

Anticipated well depths may change based on the understanding that the southern 
liner limits may adjust to the north. In the case that the total depth of the 
monitoring wells increase, additional drilling and well development 
subcontractor costs will be billed to MWA at cost. For the purpose of this 
proposal, a total of 30-ft of well development is budgeted for the project. 

Page 39 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Project Schedule 
HDR is prepared to begin work on this project immediately and will coordinate availability of project 
team personnel and resources as necessary to meet MWA’s desired timeline for construction bid 
letting and bid award. The table below identifies key milestones in the proposed Scope of Services 
to accommodate MWA’s desired timeline. It is anticipated that design services for Task 100 project 
elements will be completed concurrently and included in the design review meetings. 

Description 
Projected 

Completion Date 

Notice of Award November 15, 2023 

Design Basis Development Meeting December 15, 2023 

MW-21 Removal and Replacement February 15, 2024 

Submit to Draft Permit Expansion Drawings to MWA March 15, 2024 

Submit Conditional Use Permit Application to Boone County March 25, 2024 

Submit Permit Expansion Application to MWA April 15, 2024 

Submit Permit Application to IDNR April 30, 2024 

Cell E 60% Design Review Meeting May 15, 2024 

Cell E 90% Design Review Meeting June 15, 2024 

Cell Draft Issue for Bid and Final Design July 15, 2024 

Page 40 of 78



Metro Waste Authority | MPW Expansion Permitting 
Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services 

Compensation and Fee Schedule 
HDR will perform the Scope of Services detailed herein on a time and materials basis in the amount 
of $173,527. A detailed breakdown of our fee by task series is provided as follows: 

Task Series Description Budget 

Task 100 – MPW Phase II Expansion Permitting $85,642 

101 – Kickoff Meeting and Permit Drawings Expansion Area $32,288 

102 – Calculations, Environmental Assessments, and Plan Updates $40,131 

103 – IDNR and Boone County Application Narrative, Review Meeting 
and Submittals $13,223 

Task 200 – Cell E Preliminary Design $78,399 

201 – Cell E Liner and Leachate Collection System Design $72,911 

202 – Contract Document Development $5,488 

300 – MW-21 Removal and Replacement $9,486 

301 – MW-21 Removal and Replacement $9,486 

Total $173,527 

This Task Order is executed this 26th day of October, 2023. 

Metro Waste Authority HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 

“OWNER” “ENGINEER”  

BY: BY: 

NAME: NAME: Matthew B. Tondl 

TITLE: TITLE: Senior Vice President 

ADDRESS: ADDRESS: 1917 S 67th Street 
Omaha, NE 68106 

Page 41 of 78

https://na1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAr92aSmdWBdpSXTusC17KL-AgyDZ9pxtk


Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

ITEM:  
Approval of Chevy 6500 Service Truck Purchase for Metro Park East Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
A landfill service truck is used to make repairs, transport equipment, and bring tools to work on 
equipment within the facility. The FY23/24 budget includes $250,000 for the purchase of two new 
service trucks.   

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Staff are recommending the purchase of a new Chevrolet Silverado 6500 4X4 with a Knapheide 
Mechanics body from Woodhouse Chevrolet at a price of $166,003.   
Staff obtained multiple quotes, however, the vehicle from Woodhouse has the best price and 
shortest delivery window. 
In addition to the purchase of a service truck, staff is recommending that a welder and necessary 
tools be purchased for an amount of $10,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff are recommending the purchase of the Chevrolet Silverado from Woodhouse Chevrolet at the 
price of $166,003, and the purchase of a welder and tools for $10,000. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The FY23/24 Capital Expenditure budget includes $250,000 for the purchase of two new service 
trucks. The bids for the highway service truck, the landfill service truck, and welder with necessary 
tools are under budget.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Woodhouse Chevrolet Quote: $166,003
• Sourcewell F550 Quote: ($68,046.84 + $129,882.90 IMT Service box):

$197,929.74

CONTACT: 
Brian Wambold, disposal operations manager, 515.333.4447 

Page 42 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 1

Window Sticker
SUMMARY

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck MSRP:$61,105.00

Interior:Dark Ash seats with Jet Black interior accents, Vinyl seat trim

Exterior 1:No color has been selected.

Exterior 2:No color has been selected.

Engine, Duramax 6.6L Turbo-Diesel V8, B20-Diesel compatible

Rugged Duty Service Transmission, Automatic close-ratio 6 SPD with double overdrive, Allison, A2700RDS

OPTIONS

CODE MODEL MSRP

CK56403 [Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work
Truck

$61,105.00

OPTIONS

092 Rear axle, 4.30 ratio $0.00

1WT Work Truck Preferred Equipment Group $0.00

5DX Electrical Provisions, rear of cab, upfitter, body builder wiring $115.00

7Y8 Batteries, heavy-duty dual 1300 cold-cranking amps $85.00

9L3 Spare tire delete $0.00

A31 Windows, power with driver express up and down and express down
on all other windows

$290.00

AE7 Seats, front 40/20/40 split-bench, 3-passenger $0.00

AKO Glass, deep-tinted $100.00

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry $175.00

BTN Battery, top post threaded, battery jump start stud $50.00

DB9 GVWR, 23,000 lb. (10,433 kg) $5,950.00

DPN Mirrors, outside heated power-adjustable vertical trailering, upper
glass, manual-folding and extending, black.

$355.00

ED9 Wheelbase, 165" (419.1 cm), 84" CA $0.00

FPF DPF, diesel particulate filter, manual regeneration $250.00

FTB Front axle, 7,500 lb., Dana Spicer 60-256, single-reduction, front
driving

$0.00

Page 43 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 2

FU7 Rear suspension, 15,500 lb. (7,031 kg) multi-leaf, vari-rate $50.00

G68 Shock Absorbers, rear $65.00

G86 Axle, limited slip, Dana Spicer Truetrac, torque proportioning limited
slip

$395.00

H2Q Dark Ash seats with Jet Black interior accents, Vinyl seat trim $0.00

IOB Audio system, 7" diagonal color touch-screen with Chevrolet
Infotainment

$275.00

J27 Rear axle, 15,500 lb. (7,031 kg), Dana Spicer S16-130, single
reduction

$775.00

K05 Engine block heater $100.00

KHB Alternators, dual, 150 amps and 220 amps each $380.00

KI4 Power outlet, 110-volt AC $175.00

L5D Engine, Duramax 6.6L Turbo-Diesel V8, B20-Diesel compatible $0.00

MIA Rugged Duty Service Transmission, Automatic close-ratio 6 SPD
with double overdrive, Allison, A2700RDS

$1,135.00

NSQ Fuel tank, front and rear, 65 gallon total $625.00

NZZ Skid Plate, steel, frame-mounted, protects the transfer case from the
ground

$275.00

PCJ Vocational Specific Heavy Suspension Package $0.00

PTO Power Take Off, engine control provisions $280.00

PWQ Wheels, 19.5" x 6.75", steel, Black painted, 8-holes, hub piloted $0.00

R6G 26,000 lb. GCWR (11,793 kg) $0.00

R7P 6500 HD Series Inc.

T3U Fog lamps, front, halogen $140.00

U05 Horn, dual-note $35.00

UE1 OnStar and Chevrolet connected services capable $175.00

UQ3 6-speaker audio system Inc.

V22 Grille, chrome $220.00

V46 Bumper, front chrome $350.00

V76 Recovery hooks, front, frame-mounted, black $25.00

VK3 License plate kit, front $15.00

VV4 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hotspot capable Inc.

Page 44 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 3

XEL Tires, front 225/70R19.5H Traction blackwall Continental $180.00

YAT Tires, rear 225/70R19.5H Traction blackwall Continental $360.00

ZY1 Paint, solid $0.00

___ Bluetooth for phone, personal cell phone connectivity to vehicle
audio system

Inc.

___ Chevrolet Connected Access capable Inc.

SUBTOTAL $74,505.00

Adjustments Total $0.00

Tire Weight Tax $26.64

Destination Charge $1,895.00

TOTAL PRICE $76,426.64

Page 45 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 4

Standard Equipment
Mechanical

GVWR, 16,500 lb. (7484 kg) (Silverado 4500 HD 4WD models require one of the following combinations: (1)
(FTB) 7.5k front axle and (FTV) 7.5k front suspension and (FN1) 10k rear axle or (GL4) 11k rear axle and (GR3)
11k rear suspension. (2) (FTB) 7.5k front axle and (FTV) 7.5k front suspension and (HD1) 15k rear axle or (J27)
15.5k rear axle and (GR4) 13.5k rear suspension or (FU7) 15.5k rear suspension. (3) (FTB) 7.5k front axle and
(FTV) 7.5k front suspension and (J27) 15.5k rear axle and one of the following rear suspensions: (91B) 13.5k
LiquidSpring prep single volume rear suspension, (91C) 13.5k LiquidSpring prep stacked volume rear
suspension, (91D) 15.5k LiquidSpring prep single volume rear suspension or (91E) 15.5k LiquidSpring prep
stacked volume rear suspension.) (STD)

Emissions, 50 state certification

Emissions, USA 50 State certified

Engine, Duramax 6.6L Turbo-Diesel V8, B20-Diesel compatible 350 hp @ 2700 rpm, 700 lb.-ft. torque @ 1600
rpm (STD)

Highway Service Transmission, Automatic close-ratio 6 SPD with double overdrive, Allison, A1700HS ratios:
3.10 1ST, 1.80 2ND, 1.40 3RD, 1.00 4TH, 0.70 5TH, 0.61 6TH Highway Series, 19.5K GVW & 26K GCW Max.,
requires PTX and park pawl. Available with GVWs less than or equal to 19.5K (Requires (C7Y) 14,001 lb.
GVWR, (C5B) 15,000 lb. GVWR, (C7P) 16,000 lb. GVWR, (C7R) 16,500 lb. GVWR, (GZX) 17,500 lb. GVWR,
(GZJ) 18,000 lb. GVWR or (GZG) 19,500 lb. GVWR. Requires (R6G) 26,000 lb. GCWR (11,793 kg).) (STD)

Rear axle, 4.30 ratio Max road speed: 75 MPH

Wheelbase, 165" (419.1 cm), 84" CA (Requires (F0C) 49" axle to end of frame, (F0D) 63" axle to end of frame
or (F0K) 91" axle to end of frame. Requires (PCJ) Vocational Specific Heavy Suspension Package, when
ordering (FTA) 7,000 lb. Front axle/(FK6) 7,000 lb. Front suspension or (FTL) 8,000 lb. Front axle/(FSN) 8,000
lb. Front suspension or (FU7) 15,500 lb. rear suspension.) (STD)

Front axle, 7,500 lb., Dana Spicer 60-256, single-reduction, front driving

Front suspension, 7,500 lb. (3,402 kg) multi-leaf, includes shock absorbers

Rear axle, 11,000 lb. (4,999 kg) Dana Spicer S14-110, single reduction

Rear suspension, 11,000 lb. (4,990 kg) multi-leaf, vari-rate (STD)

Neutral-at-Stop Automatic transmission shifts to neutral when the service brake is depressed while the vehicle is
at a complete stop, and remains in neutral until the service brake is released

Transmission shift control calibration, fuel sense Performance

Four wheel drive

Batteries, heavy-duty dual 1100 cold-cranking amps includes battery box mounted to left side under cab

Alternator, 150 amps

Trailering provisions, trailering wire harness only, trailer combined (Stop/Tail/Turn) connection socket and
harness mounted at rear of frame.

Page 46 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 5

Mechanical

Trailer brake controller, integrated

Incomplete vehicle

Axle to End of Frame, 49" (Requires wheelbase (ED5) 201", (ED9) 165" or (ER2) 189". Not available with (G40),
(GP1) or (GP8) rear air suspension.)

Axle, Open rear axle, non-locking rear

Axle lubricant, front, synthetic oil EmGard FE-75W-90

Axle lubricant, rear, synthetic oil EmGard FE -75W-90

Steering, power (Bosch S2 8014 Plus)

Brakes, hydraulic, heavy duty Bosch/Meritor/Wabco system with 4-channel (ABS) (Includes (J69) driveline park
brake.)

Fuel tank, rear only, 40 gallon mounted between frame side rails and behind rear axle

Fuel, diesel B20

Capped Fuel Fill

Exhaust system, rear exit

Exhaust brake

Exterior

Wheels, 19.5" x 6.75", steel, Black painted, 8-holes, hub piloted (STD)

Tires, front 225/70R19.5G highway blackwall Pirelli Max Axle Load: 7,940 lb. (Standard on models built after
July 17th, 2023) (Requires (YEY) Tires, rear 225/70R19.5G highway blackwall Pirelli, Max Axle Load: 15,000 lb.
or (YEZ) Tires, rear 225/70R19.5G traction blackwall Pirelli, Max Axle Load: 15,000 lb.) (STD)

Tires, rear 225/70R19.5G highway blackwall Pirelli Max Axle Load: 15,000 lb. (Standard on models built after
July 17th, 2023) (Requires (XEY) Tires front 225/70R19.5G Highway blackwall Pirelli.) (STD)

Spare tire delete (STD)

Wheel, spare delete

Bumper, front, Black

Assist steps

Front fender extension, painted body color

Grille, base, molded in color, Black

Grille guard screen, insect protection (mounted behind grille)

Headlamps, halogen projector-beam

Lamps, cargo area, cab mounted with switch on center switch bank

Page 47 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 6

Exterior

Lamps, Smoked Amber roof marker

Lamps, rear, stop/turn/backup (1-piece assembly) with license plate light

Mirrors, outside high-visibility vertical camper-style, Black with manual folding and extension and lower convex
spotter glass

Glass, solar absorbing, tinted

Antenna, fixed mast

Door handles, Black

Entertainment

Audio system, 4.2" diagonal color display AM/FM stereo with USB port and auxiliary jack (Requires (AE7) front
40/20/40 split-bench seat. Not available with (UE1) OnStar or (U2K) SiriusXM Radio.) (STD)

SiriusXM, delete

Audio system feature, 4-speaker system

Interior

Seats, front 40/20/40 split-bench, 3-passenger driver and front passenger recline with outboard head restraints
and center fold-down armrest with storage. Vinyl has fixed lumbar and cloth has manually adjustable driver
lumbar. (STD)

Interior trim, Jet Black/Dark Ash (Required and only available with (H2Q/H2R) Dark Ash seats with Jet Black
interior accents.)

Seat trim, Vinyl

Seat Belt, Black

Floor covering, Graphite-colored rubberized-vinyl

Steering wheel, urethane

Steering column, manual Tilt-Wheel

Instrumentation, 6-gauge cluster featuring speedometer, fuel level, engine temperature, tachometer, voltage and
oil pressure

Speedometer, miles/kilometers

Driver Information Center, 3.5-inch diagonal monochromatic display, provides warning messages and basic
vehicle information

Upfitter switch kit provides up to 4-30 amp circuits to facilitate installation of aftermarket electrical accessories
located on the instrument panel

Windows, manual driver and front passenger

Door locks, power

Page 48 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 7

Interior

Cruise control, steering wheel-mounted

Air conditioning, single-zone

Mirror, inside rearview manual day/night

Visors, driver and front passenger, vinyl

Assist handle, front passenger and driver on A-pillars

Safety-Mechanical

Brake, parking, driveline park brake system

StabiliTrak, Electronic Stability Control System with Traction Control includes Electronic Trailer Sway Control
and Hill Start Assist

Traction control

Safety-Exterior

Daytime Running Lamps, with automatic exterior lamp control

Safety-Interior

Airbags, Single-stage frontal airbags for driver and front outboard passenger; Seat-mounted side-impact airbags
for driver and front outboard passenger; Head-curtain airbags for front outboard seating positions; Includes
airbag deactivation switch for front outboard passenger airbag (Always use seat belts and child restraints.
Children are safer when properly secured in a rear seat in the appropriate child restraint. See the Owner's
Manual for more information.)

Airbag deactivation switch, frontal passenger-side (Included and only available with (AY0) airbags.)

OnStar, delete

Rear Vision Camera, display integrated into Radio (Shipped loose in cab for upfitter installation.)

Horn, single-note

Page 49 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 8

WARRANTY

Basic Years:  3
Basic Miles/km:  36,000
Drivetrain Years (Allison Basic):  5
Drivetrain Years:  5
Drivetrain Miles/km (Allison Basic):  Unlimited
Drivetrain Miles/km:  100,000
Drivetrain Note:  Duramax Diesel
Corrosion Years (Rust-Through):  6
Corrosion Years:  3
Corrosion Miles/km (Rust-Through):  100,000
Corrosion Miles/km:  36,000
Roadside Assistance Years:  5
Roadside Assistance Miles/km:  100,000
Maintenance Note:  First Visit: 12 Months/12,000 Miles

Quote Worksheet
MSRP

Base Price $61,105.00

Dest Charge $1,895.00

Total Options $13,400.00

Subtotal $76,400.00

MSRP Adjustment ($1,041.64)

Govt. Bid Assistance ($7,400.00)

Subtotal Pre-Tax Adjustments ($8,441.64)

Less Customer Discount $0.00

Subtotal Discount $0.00

Trade-In $0.00

Subtotal Trade-In $0.00

Taxable Price $67,958.36

Tire Weight Tax $26.64

Sales Tax $0.00

Knapheide KMT1-11 Crane Body $97,839.00

Subtotal Taxes $97,865.64

Doc Fee $179.00

Subtotal Post-Tax Adjustments $179.00

Total Sales Price $166,003.00

Page 50 of 78



Woodhouse Chevy
Rick Kahla   |   712-642-4131   |   richard.kahla@woodhouse.com

[Fleet] 2023 Chevrolet Silverado MD (CK56403) 4WD Reg Cab Work Truck (2)    (  Incomplete )

Quote: Metro Waste Authority K230478

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquely.  The information provided is not intended for public disclosure.  Prices,
specifications, and availability are subject to change without notice, and do not include certain fees, taxes and charges that may be required by law or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual performance may vary.  Photos may not represent actual vehicles or exact configurations.  Content based on report preparer’s
input is subject to the accuracy of the input provided.
Data Version:  20612.  Data Updated:  Oct 3, 2023 7:27:00 PM PDT.

Oct 4, 2023 Page 9

Dealer Signature / Date Customer Signature / Date

Page 51 of 78



Page 52 of 78



Page 53 of 78



Page 54 of 78



Page 55 of 78



Page 56 of 78



Page 57 of 78



Page 58 of 78



Page 59 of 78



Page 60 of 78



Address: 500 Hwy 18 West
Garner, IA 50438

Phone: (641) 923-3711
Email: orders@imt.com

SQCE001002_1              Creator: Nick Hassler      Printed on  9/26/2023 1:21 PM Last Modified by Page 1 of 3

QUOTE
Bill To:
METRO WASTE AUTH
12181 NE 12TH AVE

MICHELLVILLE, IA 50169

Document Prepared by: Nick Hassler
Price Book July 2023

Ship To:
METRO WASTE AUTH
12181 NE 12TH AVE
MICHELLVILLE, IA 50301-8438

Quote:
Quote Date:

Available To:

SQCE001002
9/26/2023
10/26/2023

Quote Name: DOM3 12000# 30' crane, CAS40PAW

IMT DOM3 Body 14ft all raised to 60"
IMT 7500 # crane 30' reach
CAS40PAW Compressor
LED light package
Metal Bolt Bin LV2 installed Star
8" Wilton Vise Star Installed
Installation, PTO, and Pump

Dominator III: 11' heavy duty galvannealed steel crane body with standard right rear crane mount, 25" workbench bumper with through compartment, 5/16" plate 
work surface and recess for 2” hitch receiver tube rated at 2000 lb vertical tongue weight and 16,000 lb gross trailer weight and pintle hitch mounting plate rated at 
6,000 lb vertical tongue weight and 30,000 lb gross trailer weight. 7 blade trailer light plug receptacle. 60"H x 22"D compartments, 32” above cargo deck, RR crane 
compartment 52” H, 24” above cargo bed constructed of 10 and 12 ga. material. Body offers 164.9 cubic feet of storage. Inverted A frame torsion box 
understructure. 14 ga. galvannealed, hemmed, seamless single panel steel doors, stainless steel hinges, pneumatic gas spring door retainers and cast steel black 
powder coated 3-point latches. Cargo bed is 50” wide constructed of 1/8” deck plate and has six (6) recessed tie downs. Three-point access package. Fully integrated 
and sealed electrical system incorporating an automotive style harness system with power and function distribution box. CMD.CTRL™ allows operator to control 
stabilizers, lights, compressor from the crane compartment. When packaged with an IMT Series 4 telescopic crane, these functions and functions of the crane can be 
operated via the wireless controller. Includes LED DOT stop, tail, turn, marker and backup body lights and backup alarm. Exterior primed, interior of compartments 
painted with IMT compartment coat and understructure undercoated. Molded fender extensions and mudflaps. Crane body designed to accept up to and including 
12,000 lb maximum capacity crane for installation on 84" CA, 33,000 lb GVW or larger single axle chassis

Line Qty Description Unit Price Install Price 
1 1.00 DOM3S4 

Dominator Body: 51728331R - 11' Right & Left Sidepack Raised to 60"
Crane Compartment: 60" Crane Compartment

  Body Paint Selections: Paint Color: White
Paint Code: L0006EY

 Unit Shipping State: Ship Out with Items Installed
Chassis ETA: NA - Shipout Body
Equipment: Hydraulic Crane and Compressor

Main Electrical Harness INSTALLED

IMT Mud Flaps: IMT Mudflaps Included 
Telescopic Crane Model: 750030

Crane Mounting Holes: 7500 

Body Options

1
1
1

51718801
51724685
51724472

10" Black Tailgate
KIT-ROCK GUARD (2) 60 DOM 1-2 DSC20
DS3  -HEADACHE RACK KIT-LRSD-RRSD

Page 61 of 78



SQCE001002_1 Creator: Nick Hassler      Printed on  9/26/2023 1:21 PM Last Modified by Page 2 of 3

1 51727147 GATE-REMOVABLE MECH 50in / 52in BED-BLK 

Rear End Options

1 51710172 KIT-VISE MTG BRKT BOLT-ON

Lighting Options

1
1
1
1
1

51726717
51726761
51727132
51726756
51726900

LIGHT KIT-DS3 LED(4-18)(5-48)R-CRN
LIGHT KIT-FLOOD LIGHT LED REAR MOUNT
LIGHT KIT-FLOOD LIGHT LED FRT MOUNT P-P
LIGHT KIT-FLOOD LIGHT LED W/O MOUNTS
LIGHT KIT-SMART STROBE 4-RECT AMBER

Compartment Options

1-70733779
LV1 Compartment Options  
DRAWERS 26W 2-5/1-7/5-3 41H PAINTED 

1-70733773
LH Compartment Options
DRAWERS 39W 2-5/1-7 42.62X23 PAINTED 

2-51723718
LR Compartment Options
DS3  -SHELF KIT 1.50  LR  

1-51719752
1-51723744

RV1 Compartment Options
D(II)-KIT-TANK BRKT-2 BOTTLE FRT CMPT 
DS3  -DIVIDER KIT-BOLT ON 20H D2-3 RH  

2-51723714
RV2 Compartment Options
DS3  -SHELF KIT 1.50  V2 11  - V3 13-14 

1-70733773
RH Compartment Options
DRAWERS 39W 2-5/1-7 42.62X23 PAINTED

Air System

1
1
1
1

CAS40PAW
51728146
51725644
51727824 

Compressor - CAS40PAW
AIR TANK KIT-DOM2-3 11FT 22.5 GAL SS
HOSE REEL KIT- .50 X 50ft W/ POLY GUIDE
FRL-DOM P32 (PARKER) 

Welder Items
1 52721507 - Welder Mount - Rear Non-Crane Sidepack 

Crane Related Items

1
1

31728472
51725484

DS4-STABILIZER-KIT-DOM2 PO-PD DANFOSS
KIT-BOOM SUPPORT-D1-3 TALL

Safety Items

1 92091010 ICC Kit  

Hydraulic System

1 91723963 DS3  -KIT HYDRAULIC RESERVOIR 21 GAL

Electrical Options

1 51711674 OUTLET KIT-110V GFI 15A W/PLUG 

110 Volt Outlet Location: Right Rear Body - Above Air Hose Outlet

Additional Items
Qty Part Number Description List Price

Page 62 of 78



SQCE001002_1 Creator: Nick Hassler      Printed on  9/26/2023 1:21 PM Last Modified by Page 3 of 3

1
1
1
1

51724320
0
51726440
Star-001 8" 
Wilton Vise

Metal Bolt Bin LV2 Installed

Oxy Axt reel top mount RV1
Wilton 8" vise

Model 7500 Series Telescopic Mechanic Field Service Crane: 7,500 pound maximum lift capacity, 400 degree rotation, double-acting cylinders with integral holding 
and/or counterbalance valves, four-section remote control valve, proportional radio remote control with radio elimination cable, boom mounted 60 ft/min planetary 
winch, return filters, crane hook, snatch block, anti-two-block device, hydraulic overload shutdown system, decals and mounting kit. CMD.CTRL™ allows operator to 
control crane remotely from the wireless controller. When packaged with IMT Series 4 mechanics body, the operator can also control stabilizers, lights, compressor, 
and auxiliary equipment from the wireless controller.

Line Qty Description Unit Price Install Price 
2 1.00 Hydraulic Telescopic Crane 

Crane Model: 750030 - CRANE MODEL 7500 30FT BOOM
Crane Control: RR3 - Single Proportional Radio Remote Control

Flood Lights: 51724116 - LED Boom Tip Flood Lights 
Paint Selections: Paint Code: N0006

Paint Color: IMT White 

Terms Comments: Customer supplied 2003 Sterling Chassis 84" CAB.
Installation estimated at $18,000. If any additional repairs/modifications needed for installation to the chassis this will increase 
associated costs.
10% deposit at the time of order.
Balance due at the time of delivery.

Pricing Comments: Customer responsible for tax, title, and license.

Total Amount - Final Customer Price in USD: $129,882.90

CONDITIONS: The prices and terms on this quotation are not subject to verbal changes or other agreements unless approved in writing by the Home Office of the 
Seller. All quotations and agreements are contingent upon strikes, accidents, fires, availability of materials and all other causes beyond our control. Prices are based 
on costs and conditions existing on date of quotation and are subject to change by the Seller before final acceptance. Quote valid for 30 days. All quotations are 
contingent upon compliance with all of the export laws and regulations of the United States. If any such law or regulation cannot be complied with, or if this 
equipment is prohibited from being exported at any time by the United States Government, this quotation and/or subsequent order(s) received or accepted become 
null and void.

Page 63 of 78



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

ITEM:  
Approval of Ford F250 Road Service Truck Purchase for Metro Park East Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
A service truck is used to make repairs, transport equipment, and bring tools to work on equipment 
outside of the facility on public roads. The FY23/24 budget includes $250,000 for the purchase of 
two new service trucks.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Staff are recommending the purchase of a new 2023 FORD F250 SuperCab with a reading 
mechanics body from Karl’s Emergency at a price of $66,601.38. This would be used to repair and 
assist with breakdowns outside of the facilities. This will increase the safety of the mechanics and 
drivers. It will also allow mechanics to have necessary tools to make roadside repairs. 
Karl’s Emergency also has another 2023 Ford F250 with a Reading mechanics body. The price for 
this vehicle is $69,276.30. 
Sourcewell also has provided quotes on multiple 2024 Ford F250 cab and chassis with different 
options. The average price is approximately $53,000, plus $14,000 for the purchase of a reading 
mechanics body, plus installation. Another concern with purchasing from Sourcewell would be lead 
time, which could be up to one year out. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff are recommending the purchase of the 2023 Ford F250 with a reading mechanics body from 
Karl’s Emergency at the price of $66,601.38. Staff recommendation is based on availability and 
serviceability. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The FY23/24 Capital Expenditure budget includes $250,000 for two new service trucks. The bids 
for the highway service truck, the landfill service truck, and welder with necessary tools are under 
budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Karl’s Emergency Ford F250 SuperCab: $66,601.38
• Karl’s Emergency F250 Quote CrewCab: $69,276.30
• Sourcewell Quote F250 CrewCab ($56,805 + $14,000 mechanics box): $70,805

CONTACT: 
Brian Wambold, disposal operations manager, 515.333.4447 

Page 64 of 78



Page 65 of 78



1101 SE ORALABOR
ANKENY, IOWA 50021
www.karlchevrolet.com

Sources

VEHICLE SELLING PRICE / unit DESCRIPTION COST ACCT No Sale

Total Accessories: 14,336.30

PURCHASER'S CERTIFICATION

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY
It is understood and agreed by purchaser that the vehicle above described is sold by the
dealer "AS IS" and that dealer makes no warranty of merchantability of the vehicle and
makes no warranty that such vehicle is fit for any par�cular purpose.

TOLL FREE 1-800-622-8264
FAX (515) 964-0845

Salesman

NAME
Address Phone

Key

REPORTING FAN

KEY CODE

         PHONE (515)964-4225 

Government DATE: 10/23/2023

2023 NEW FORD F250 WHITE N/A N/A C1025
VIN

100 120 200

40
43
42
4

231
237

ACCESSORIES: 
4
4

324A

80
14,336.30 220A

Delivery Charge
300B

322
261C

647
651
646
650

262 / 80
220

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY

$54,940.00

$69,276.30

Year New/Used Make Model Ext Color Int Color Social Security Number Salesman

Model No

THIS ORDER SHALL NOT BECOME
BINDING UNTIL ACCEPTED BY DEALER OR HIS AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE; AND,

 I understand that liability insurance coverage which would
protect me under the Iowa Motor Vehicle Financial and Safety
Responsibility Act is NOT INCLUDED in my purchase of the herein
described mother vehicle.  I have received a copy of this
statement.

Stock Number

Deal #

BID/ITEM Number INVOICE Stock No

1FT7W2BA5PEC52158

$54,940.00

TOTAL to Customer on Purchase Agreement

New Car retail

New truck

Protec�on Plan

Inventory New Car

Inventory New Truck

Used Retail Car/Truck

Used Whsle Car/Truck

Sales Tax

Credit Life Ins $

Cash on Delivery $

Payoff Balance

Credit Life Ins

Recondi�oning USED Cars Retail

used Trucks Retail

Cost of Sales -Used Cars retail

used Trucks retail

Cust no. 

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

I hereby cer�fy that:-
(1) This order includes all of the terms and condi�ons hereof, that
this order cancels and supercedes any prior agreements and as of
the date hereof comprises the complete and exclusive statement
of the terms of the agreement rela�ng to the subject
ma�erscovered hereby, and that 

(2) THat I have read the terms and condi�onsof this order and
have received a true copy of thereof; AND
(3) That the only exis�ng material defect known to me on the
motor vehicle that is being traded in to the dealer are
:_________________________________AND
(4)

READING UTILITY BOX

Sub-Total 

TOTAL

Purchaser
Signature

X__________________________
__

Karl Chevrolet Tax ID- 42-1092272

Page 66 of 78



Page 67 of 78



Page 68 of 78



Page 69 of 78



Page 70 of 78



Page 71 of 78



Page 72 of 78



Page 73 of 78



Page 74 of 78



Page 75 of 78



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 11 

ITEM:  
Approval of Acknowledgement of Bond Reimbursement Payment to Polk County. 

SUMMARY:  
This payment to Polk County for bond proceeds related to the Material Recovery Facility (MRF) 
and refinance of the Metro Northwest Transfer Station (MNTS) occurs semi-annually.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Semi-annual payments to Polk County for bond issuance for MRF and refinance of MNTS are 
scheduled in November and May, until May 2040. Each November payment is interest only, and 
each May payment will be principal and interest. The interest payment is due by November 30, 
2023, in the amount of $376,050.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

CONTACT: 
Kirk Irwin, chief financial officer, 515.323.6506 

Page 76 of 78



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 15, 2023 
AGENDA ITEM 12 

ITEM:  
Approval to Add Virtual Attendance Policy to Board Policy Manual. 

SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) Board of Directors proposes adding a policy regarding virtual 
attendance to the Board Policy Manual. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
A virtual attendance policy will clarify the option for attending meetings of the MWA Board of 
Directors virtually during certain circumstances.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Draft virtual attendance bylaw

CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

Page 77 of 78



VI. BOARD MEETINGS

In the event a Board member has a conflict that impedes their ability to attend a meeting of the 
Authority Board in person, an option to join the meeting virtually shall be provided to the 
individual. The individual will be able to hear and be heard during virtual attendance. 

V. VOTING

E. In the event a Board member is attending a meeting virtually, the individual’s attendance will
count towards quorum and the individual may participate in voice vote at the same degree as
representatives attending in person.

Page 78 of 78


	Board Memo - pgs. 1-2
	Agenda - pgs. 3-4
	Agenda Item 5 - October 2023 Minutes - pgs. 5-7
	Agenda Item 6: October 2023 Expenditures - pgs. 8-10
	Agenda Item 7: Design & Prepare for MPE - pgs. 11-28
	Agenda Item 8: Design & Permitting for MPW - pgs. 29-41
	Agenda Item 9: Chevy 6500 Service Truck - pgs. 42-63
	Agenda Item 10: Ford F250 Road Service Truck - pgs. 64-75
	Agenda Item 11: Bond Reimbursement Payment Polk County - pg. 76
	Agenda Item 12: Virtual Attendance Policy Addition - pgs. 77-78



